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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Titan Commaedity Trading Limited ({the "Company™ which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statemenis give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its profit and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility. also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial staterments, the Management and Boeard of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from etror, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of internal contral.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also respansible
for expressing our apinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists retated to events or conditions that may cast significart doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. :

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Titan Commodity Trading Limited

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from cur examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.
b.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

(i)

the Note 25(a) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 25(b) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iiiy Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us fo believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e}, as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

Page 3 of 10



BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Titan Commodity Trading Limited

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under section 197{16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no remuneration was paid
by the company to its directors during the current year and as such the requirements prescribed under
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us, shall not apply.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248Wn/N-100022

£

rjun Ramesh

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 27 April 2023 ICAI UDIN:23218495BGYWBT6E722
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BSR&Co.LLP

b

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Titan Commodity Trading Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner every year. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and
equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reascnable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
discrepancy was noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, ctause 3(i)(c} of the Order is not applicable.

{d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

{e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

{i) (@ The Company is a service company, primarily rendering broking services. Accordingly, it does
not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ji)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and finangcial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii){b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of ioans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3{ifi)(a) to 3(ii)}(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are not applicabie {o the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

{wi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (@) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been

ubsumed into GST.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Titan Commodity Trading Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued}

()
(vii)

{ix) (@)
(b)
(©
(d)

(e)

)

() (@)

(b)

(xi} (a)

§ (b}

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited by the
Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any
dues on account of Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise and Employee's State Insurance.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at
31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating o Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues, which have not been deposited with
the appropriate autherities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have heen
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an averall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures as defined under the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Campany has not raised leans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x}(b} of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the bocks and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of Titan Commodity Trading Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

Section 143 of the Act has been filéd by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have a vigil
mechanism and is not required to have a vigil mechanism as per the Act or SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

{xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

{xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
The Company does not fall under the definition of a listed company or other class of companies
which is required to constitute audit commitiee under section 177(4)(iv) of the Act and hence
the said provision is not applicable to the Company.

(i} (@) in our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, though the
Company is not required to have an internal audit system under Section 138 of the Act, the
Company does have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(h) We have considered the internal audit reporis of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (8) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b}  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accerdingly, clause 3{xvi){b) of the Order is not applicable.

{©) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) Accarding to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the provisions
of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2018) has more than one CIC
as part of the Group. The Group has six CICs as part of the Group

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xwiii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and expianations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the

balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Titan Commaodity Trading Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

R

rjun Ramesh

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218485
Date: 27 April 2023 ICAI UDIN:23218495BGYWBT6G722
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Titan Commodity Trading Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)}(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Titan Commodity
Trading Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the intermnal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential compenents of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the exient applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controts with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
; provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliahility of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Titan Commodity Trading Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that {1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financiai controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future pericds are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

£

Arjitn Ramesh

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 27 April 2023 ICAl UDIN:23218495BGYWBTGE722
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Titan Commeadity Trading Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

ASSETS

(1) Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
{b) Bank balances other than (a) above
{c) Other financial assets

{2} Non-financial Assets
(a) Current tax assets(net)
(b} Deferred tax assets (net)
{c) Property, plant and equipment
{d) Other intangible assets
(&) Other non-financial assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
(a) Trade Payables
(I) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
(11} Total putstanding dues of creditors other
than micro and small enterprises
(b) Other Financial Liabilittes

(2) Non-financial Liahilities

(a) Provisions
() Other non-financial liabilities

EQUITY

(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

Total Liabilities and Eqnity

Significant accounting policies

Zero {'0") represents amowts less than 1 lakh when rounded off

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Jor BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

R.

Arjun Ramvésh
Partner
Membership Number : 218495

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 27 April 2023

Zin lakhs
Note As at Ag at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
3 7,437 7.422
3 42,804 42,029
4 744 784
50,985 50,235
] 142 28
9 13 6
5 1] 1
6 3 8
7 39 26
200 69
51,185 50304
8 (@ = -
49,174 49992
8 () . .
8 {ii) 35 31
49,209 50,023
10 77 19
11 165 14
242 33
12 1,500 200
13 234 48
1,734 248
51,185 50,304
2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Titan Commodity Trading Limited

CIN No- U67190KA2020P 7042 (\
Krishnan Venkateswaran Ashok Sonthalia

Director
DIN-09747394

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 27 April 2023

Director
DIN-03259683

Place: Bengaluru
Date ; 27 April 2023



Titan Commodity Trading Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the period ended 31 March 2023

Tin lakhs
Note For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from operations
(a) Fees and commission income 14 723 521
(1) Total revenue from operations 723 521
(2) Other income 15 2 3
(3) Total income (I +T} 725 524
Expenses
(i) Fees and commisston expense 16 164 231
(ii) Employee benefits expense 17 155 142
(iii} Depreciation and amortisation expense 5 5 4
(iv) Other expenses 18 125 52
(4) Total expenses 449 429
(5) Profit / (Loss) before tax (HI - IV) 276 95
Tax expense:
(i) Current tax 9 86 24
(i1) Deferred tax (7 ()]
(6) Total tax 79 18
(7) Profit / {Loss) for the period (V-VI) 197 77
{8) Other comprehensive income
(i} lzems that will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and foss
- Remeasurement of employee defined benefit plans (15} “)
~ Income-tax on (i) above 4 1
Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) (1) 3
{8) Total comprehensive income/ (loss) (VIT+VIH) 186 74
{9)Earnings per equity share : 20
(Face value of T 10 per share)
Basic 6.0 3.8
Diluted 6.0 3.8
Siguificant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of thesc financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Titan Commodity Trading Limgited
Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 CIN Mo- U67190KA2020PLE125042

R 1 o
/

Arjun Rathgsh Krishnas Venkateswaran Ashok Sonthalia
Partner Director Director
Membership Number : 218495 DIN-09747394 DIN-03259683
Place: Bengahru Place: Bengalury Place: Bengaluru

Date : 27 April 2023 Date : 27 April 2023 Date : 27 April 2023



Titan Commeodity Trading Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the period ended 31 March 2023

Ein lakhs Zin lakhs
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(a) Equity share capital
Opening balance 200 200
Changes in equity share capital during the year 1,300 -
Closing balance 1,500 200
(b) Other equify
Reserves and Other comprehensive
surplus income
Particulars Retained earnings| Remeasurement of Total equity
employee defined benefit
plans
Balance as at I April 2021 {26) - (26)
Profit for the year (net of taxes) 77 - 77
Other comprehensive income for the year {net of taxes) - (3} (3)
Total comprehensive income for the year 51 3) 48
Balance as at 31 March 2022 51 {3) 48
Balance as at 1 April 2022 51 [€)] 48
Profit for the year (net of taxes) 197 - 197
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) - {an {(11)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 249 (15} 234
Significant accounting policies Note 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Jfor BSR & Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Titan Commodity Trading Limited
Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 CIN No- U67190KA2020PLC137042 (

¢ V &
Arjun Rimesh Krishn4n Venkateswaran Ashok Senthalia
Partner Director Director
Membership Number : 218495 DIN-09747394 DIN-03259683
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date : 27 April 2023 Date : 27 April 2023 Date : 27 April 2023




Titan Commadity Trading Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particnlars

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Interest Income

Change in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in other bank balances
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets
Ttcrease/(Decrease) in trade payables

Increase in provisions

Increase in other financial liabilities
Increase in other cutrent liabilities
Cash generated frorm/ (used in) operations

Income taxes paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including
intangibles and capital work in progress

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 3)
Add/ (Less): Unrealised exchange {gain)/ loss

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 3)

Significant accounting policies

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
Jor BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

"
Arjun Rajgesh
Partner

Membership Number : 218495

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 27 April 2023

C

(AFB+C)

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
276 95
5 4
@) (3}
279 96
(775) (42,004)
27 (769}
(B18) 49,967
47 16
3 31
152 i2
(1.364) 7,253
(199 (52)
(1,285) 1,297
(2 )
2 4
(] 4
1,300 -
1300 -
15 7,301
7.422 121
7,437 7,422

DIN-09747394

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 27 April 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Titan Commodity Trading Limited
CIN No- U67T190KA2020PLC137042
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Krishnan Venkateswaran

1~ L’\
——

Ashok Sonthalia

Director
DIN-03259683

Place: Bengaluiru

Date : 27 April 2023



Titan Commedity Trading Limited

Notes to financial statements

1. Corporate Information

Titan Commodity and Trading Limited (“the Company™), was incorporated on 10 August 2020 as a wholly
owned subsidiary of Titan Company Limited (“FCL” or “Holding company™). The Company is engaged
in the business of trading in various commodities and products by acquiring or registering as 2 member of
direct commodities or commodity futures (primarily Gold). Accordingly, the Company has registered with
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) and obtained certificate of registration on 4 December
2020. The Company is also a member of Multi Commodity Exchange of India Ltd (“MCX*) with effect
from 26 November 2020 and MCX have activated for enabling the Company for trading on 4 February
2021.

2. Significant accounting policies

i

Basis of preparation
a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standard (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended, read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) and other relevant provisions
of the Act.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 27 April
2023.

b) Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention
except for fair value through other comprehensive (FVTOCI) instruments, derivative financial
instruments and financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
all which have been measured at fair value.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

¢) Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amount of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities,
Such estimates and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may diverge from these
estimates.

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.



i

Titan Commeodity Trading Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

Bagis of preparation (continued)

d) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates (i.e. the “functional currency™). The
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, the national currency of India, which is the functional
currency of the Company. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise
indicated.

e) Measurement of fair values

Certain accounting policies and disclosures of the Company require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values and
the valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

‘When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into a different levels
of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant fo the entire measurement.

ii. Revenue recognition

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured
at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with
customers, outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers, The Company is engaged in the buginess of providing brokerage services.

In accordance with Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the revenue is accounted in the
following manner for each head:

a) Brokerage fee income
Income from services rendered as a broker is recognised upon rendering of the services on a trade
date basis upon confirmation by the stock exchange, in accordance with the terms of contract. The
services are point in time in nature,

b) Imcome from bank guarantee commission
Income from bank guarantee commission is recognized at an agreed rate based on the bank
guarantee value provided to the customer.

¢) Other Income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method.



Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Notes to financial statements (continued)

iii. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease i.e., if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified assei for a period in exchange of consideration.

Company as a Lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases except for short-term
leases. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make leasc payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets. The nature of expenses related to those leases has
changed from lease rent in previous periods to (i) amortization for the right-to-use asset, and (ii) interest
accrued on lease liability.

a) Right-of-use assets:

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
i} the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

ii) any initial direct costs

iif) restoration costs

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
b) Lease Liabilities:

Lease liabilities are measured at present value of following components:
i) fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable
ii) amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantee

Incremental borrowing rate used for discounting has been determined by taking the interest rates
obtained from financial institutions for borrowing the similar value of right of use assets for similar
tenure. The rates will be reassessed on a yearly basis at the beginning of each accounting period to
reflect changes in financial conditions.

¢) Short-term leases:

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term lease contracts (i.e.

those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). Lease payments on a short-term leases are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.,

d) Variable payments: Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognised in the Statement of
profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Company as a Lessor:

In case of sub-leasing, where the Company, being the original lessee and intermediate lessor, grants a right
to use the underlying asset to a third party, the head lease is recognised as lease liability and sub-lease is
recognised as lease receivables in the Balance Sheet of the Company. Interest expense is charged on the
lease liability and interest income is recognised on lease receivables in the statement of profit or loss.



Titan Commedity Trading Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
iv. Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial staterents of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised ai the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the
transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in
which they arise except for exchange differences on transactions designated as cash flow hedge.

v. Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

All short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, special awards and medical benefits which
fall within 12 months of the period in which the employee renders related services which entitles them to
avail such benefits and non-accumulating compensated absences are recognised on an undiscounted basis
and charged to the statement of profit and loss.

A Tiability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing
plans, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plan

The Company's contributions to the Superannuation Fund which is managed by a Trust and Pension Fund
administered by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and Company's contribution to National pension
Scheme are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when
services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plan

The contribution to the Titan Industries Gratuity Fund is provided using the projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising
actuarial gains and losses is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with charge or credit recognised in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected in retained earnings and is not reclassified to the statement of profit and
loss.

The contribution to the Titan Watches Provident Fund Trust is made at predetermined rates and is charged
as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by
the employees.

Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related services are recognised as an actuarially determined liability at the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.



Titan Commodity Trading Limited
Notes to financial statements {continued)

vi. Taxation
Income tax comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in the other comprehensive income.

a) Current tax: The current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit
before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

b) Deferred tax: Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised on temporary differences between the
cattying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India,
which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income
tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can
be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be
realised.

Defetred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except in respect of
taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised, when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a fransaction that is not a business combination and affects neither
accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

The Company offsets deferred income tax assets and liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and they relate to taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity, or on different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized
simultancously.



Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Notes to financial statements (continued)

vii. Impairment

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company recognises loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no
significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial
assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime
ECL. The amount of expected credit losses {or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the
reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognised as an impairment gain or foss
in the staiement of profit and loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss,

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit} in prior years, A reversal of impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

viii. Provisions and contingencies

Provisions: A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which
a reliable estimate can be made.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required fo settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of time value of money is
material),



Titan Commodity Trading Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
viii. Provisions and contingencies (continued)

Contingent liabilities: A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or
a present obligation that may probably not requirc an outflow of resources. When there is a possible or a
present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made in the financial statements,

Provision for onerous contracts. i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable cost of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it, are recognised
when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a
present obligation as a result of an obligating event based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.

ix. Financial instruments

Recognition of financial assets:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments,

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to financial assets and liabilities [other than financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL)] are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
liabilities, as appropriate on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly atiributable to acquisition of
financial assets or Habilities measured at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the stalement of profit and
loss.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in market place.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of financial assets.

A) Financial Agsets

Classification of financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified at

1 Amortised cost
(ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
(iii)  Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
group changes its business model for managing financial assets.

i) Financial assets at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and



Titan Commodity Trading Limited
Notes to financial siatements (continued)
ix. Financial instruments (continued)

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

Effective interest method:

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets.
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "Other income" line item.

ii) Investments in equity instruments at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCT)

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value either in the statement of profit and loss or in other
comprehensive income pertaining to equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through
other comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to the statement of profit and
loss on disposal of the investment,

A financial asset is held for trading if:
- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Currenily, the Company has not elected to present subsequent changes in investments in equity instruments
in OCL Accordingly, the same are considered as investments measured at FVTPL.,

iii) Investments in equity instruments at FVTPL

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or rccognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit and loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the 'Other income' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised
when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably,

&



Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Notes to financial statements (continued)

ix, Financial instruments {continued)

c) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contraciual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

‘When the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised.

‘Whether the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retaing substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control
of the financial asset. When the Company retaing control of the financial asset, the asset is continned to be
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset,

The Company has applied derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities
prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the transition date of Ind AS.

d) Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

- For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FV'TPL, the exchange
differences arc rccognised in the statement of profit and loss except for those which are designated as
hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

- For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated
as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised cost are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income,

B) Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement and derecognition:

Equity instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instraments issued by a group entity are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Other Financial liabilities:

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or
at FVTPL.
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ix. Financial instruments (continued)

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition
or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company,
and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in
accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative ot it is
designated as such in initial recognition.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The net gain or loss recognised in statement of
profit and loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other
income/Other expenses’ line item,

The Company has designated amount payable for gold taken on loan from banks on initial recognition as
fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities
that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foreign exchange gains and losses:

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at
the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the
amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are
measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is
recognised in the statement of profit and foss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition
of a new financial liability.

The Company has applied derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities
prospectively for transactions oceurring on or after the transition date of Ind AS.

2
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X. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Board of Directors of the Company assesses the financial
performance and position of the Company. The Board of Directors have been identified as the CODM.

The CODM evaluates the performance of the Company as a whole for the purpose of resources to be
allocated and to assess performance. The Company has identified only one reportable segment. The entire

Company's business is from 'Brokerage and Guarantee Commission Income from provision of trading
services' and there are no other reportable segments. Thus, the segment revenue, segment results, total
carrying value of segment assets, total carrying value of segment liabilities, total cost incurred to acquire
segment assets, total amount of charge of depreciation during the year are all as reflected in the financial
statements for the periods reported.

Revenue generated by the company relates only to one service. Hence, the Company's sole operating
segment for the fees and commission from brokerage services.

xi. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments
and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from
regular revenue generating (operating activities), investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated,

xii. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less,

xiii. Earnings per share

Basic Eamings Per Share (EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings
per share is computed by dividing the net profit by the weighted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date, In computing diluted earnings
per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces earnings per share or increases
loss per share are inclunded.

xiv. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of asset. Other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

&
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xv. Property, plant and equipment

a. Recognition and measurement:
Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price/
acquisition cost, net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other
than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable
expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses and
interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying property, plant and equipment
up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure on property, plant
and equipment after its purchase / completion is capitalised only if such expenditure resuits in
an increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance,

The estimated useful life of the tangible assets and the useful life are reviewed at the end of
each financial year and the depreciation period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

b. Depreciation
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other substituted for cost, less its
estimated residual value. Depreciation is calculated on the basis of the estimated useful lives
using the straight line method and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Depreciation for assets purchased/ sold during the year is proportionately charged from/upto
the date of disposal. Free hold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Asset category Useful lives

Computers 3 years

Based on tfechnical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its
estimates of useful lives as given above represents the period over which the management
expects to use these assets.

A
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xv. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Repairs
and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. The
cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon

sale or digposition of the asset and the resuliant gains or losses are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

Advance paid towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date is
disclosed as capital advances under noncurrent assets.

xvi. Intangibles

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. Intangible assets are
amortised over their respective estimated useful lives on a straight line basis, from the date that they are
available for use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible assets is based on a number of
factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as
the stability of the industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures
required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:
a. Software - License period or 5 years, whichever is lower,

The estimated useful life of the tangible assets and the useful life are reviewed at the end of each financial
year and the depreciation period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

xvii, Recent accounting pronouncements

"Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 31 March 2023,
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from 1 April 2023, as below:

a, Ind AS 1 — Presentation of financial statements
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than
their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial
statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its
financial statements.
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xvii. Recent accounting pronouncements (continued)

b. Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition
cxemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer
applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant
impact in its financial statements.

¢. Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting
estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a
definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are
"monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.
Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does
not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Yo
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Tin lakhs
Cash and bank balamees
Particalars Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand - -
Balances with banks (of the natare of cash and cash equivalents)
In cutrent account with banks {refer note (a) below} 7437 7,422

-In India with scheduied banks {refer note (a) below}

-Outside India D -
Total cash and cask eguivalents 7,437 7,422
Other bank balances
Fixed deposits with hanks {refer note (b) below}

-In India 42,804 42,020

-Outside India - -
Total other hank balances 42,804 42,029

50,241 49,451
Note -

4) The balance in current sccounts includes the positive balance in the overdraft account amounting to Rs. 6,911 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 7,200 lakhs). The overdraft
account has been opened to facilitate transzctions with MCX such as Mark to Market gain/ (loss} on daily basis. The overdraft account has been taken by placing Fixed
Digpesity on lien as soowtitios. There was no requi for quarterly 10 be filed with bank.

b) Fixed deposit under lien with MCX (Exchange) amounted fo Rs. 32,750 lakhs ( Previous year: Rs. 28,000 lakhs) placed for the purpese of commencementof trading
with Exchange.

Other financial assets
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Intezest accrued on fixed deposits 701 749
Security deposits 35 35
Other financial asssts 7 =
744 784
Other non-financial assets
Property, plant and equipment
Particulars Computers Total
Gross block
Asat 1 April 2021 = =
Additiong 1 1
Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2022 1 1
Asat1 Apnl 2022 1 1
Additions - =
Disposals - -
As at 31 Mar 2023 1 1
Accumulated depreciation
Asgat | Aprii 2021 - E
Additions* 1] 0
Disposals - -
As at 31 Mar 2022 [ L]
Asat 1 April 2022 o 0
Depreciation expense for the year *# 1] 0
Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2023 1 1
Net carrying valte -
As at 3 March 2022 1 i
As at 31 March 2023 0 0
# Refer note 28

*Zere ('0% represents amounts less than 1 lakh when rounded off
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6

Intangible assets

Particulars

Gross bleck

Az at 1 April 2021
Additions

Digposals

As at 31 March 2022

Asat { Apdl 2622

Additiens

Disposais

As at 31 Mar 2023
Aecumulated amortisation

As at 1 April 2021

Amottisation expense for the year
Disposals

As at 31 March 2022

Azat 1 April 2022

Amertisation expense for the year
Disposals

As at 31 Mar 2023

Net carvping value

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2023

Tin lakhs
Ag at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Computer softwares Total
1z 12
12 12
12 12
2 2
i1 14
4 4
4
4 4
4 4
3
8 8
6 &

* The Company does pot have any capital work in progress/ infangibles under development as at 31 March 2{23 and 31 March 2022, hence capital work in progress/

intangibles under development schedule is not applicable.

* There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under Benami Transactions {Prohibitions} Act, 1988 and the rules

made thereunder, for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Other non financial assets
Particulars

Unsecured and considered good

Prepaid expenses

Loans given fo employees - current

Gratity asset (refer note 22)

Balance with government authorities {refer note {a) below}

a) Balances with government authorities are GST input credits.
Finandtial Liabilities
D) Trade payables

Particolars

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises*
Total outstanding dues of other than micro and small enterprises

*Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises I

The principal amount and the intersst due thezcon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year:

- Principal

- Interest
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Exterprises
Development Act, 2006.

Amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

The amount of interest die and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond

the appointed day during the yeer) but without adding the interest specificd under MSMED Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year,

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purposes of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006.

P Act, 2006

Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
13 3
- 7
- 1
21 15
39 26
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
49,174 49,992
49,174 49,992
Asat As af
31 March 2023 31 March 222
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a)

b)

c}

Zin lakhs
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2023
. Omistanding for following periods from due date of payment
Hay sulets Less than 1 year 1-3 years i More than 3 years el
(i) MSME - = -
(ii) Others 40,174 - 49,174
(ii1) Disputed dues — MSME - - -
(iv) Disputed dues — Others = D =l
Total 49,174 - 49,174
As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME - - -
(i) Others 49,992 - 49,992
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - -
(iv) Disputed ducs — Others - S -
Total 49,992 - 49,992
Other Financial Liabilities
. As at Asat
RHEfeiaes 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Acerued salaries and benefits 35 31
35 3
Tagome tax
Amonnts recognised in statement of profit and loss
Particulars As at As at
31 Marech 2023 31 March 2022
Tncome tax expenses
Current tax 32 23
Deferred tax N
Income tax included in other 1
-Remeasurement of employee defined 4 1
Tax expense for the year yr 24
The recencilistion between the provision of income tax and amounts computed by applying the Indiar statutory income tax rate fo profit before taxes:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit before tax 276 95
Enacted income tax rate in Indiz* 25.168% 25.168%
Computed expected tax cxpenss 69 24
Effect of:
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 17 6
Expeasc allowed under IT Act for current year (Preliminary Exp) (1} 43
Effect of Previcus year losses - {4y
Expenses allowed under [T Act for current year (Leave Encashment} - [t}
Others {Depreciation) = L]
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 86 24
The following table provides the details of income tax assets and income tax abilities as of 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Inconie tax assets 142 28
Current inoome tax liability - -
Net Income Tax Assets at the end of the year 142 28
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Net current income tax assets at the beginring of the year 28 -
Ingome tax paid 199 52
Current income tax gxpense {86) (24)
Net current income tax Assels at the end of the year 141 28
Movement of deferred tax
Incowme taxes
The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities):
Particalars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defetred tax assets 13 &
Deferred tax liabilides il {0)
13 6

———

§ ¥
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Particulary

Deferred tax labilities
Property, plant and equipment
Employee benefits

Intangible asset

Deferred tax assets
Employee benefits
Preliminary expenss / 35D

Net deferred tax asset /(liability)

Particulars

Dreferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment
Employec benefits

Tntangible asset

Deferred tax assets
Employee benefits
Preliminary expensef 35D

Net deferred tax asset /(tizbility)
10 Provisions

Particulars

Provision for gratuity (refer note 22)
Provision for leave salaries (refer note 22)
Other Provisiona*

Total

*The Company was in receipt of an emaif communication from MCX on 0% April 2022 demanding penalty of Rs. 36,13,405 for non-submission of segregation of clicat
collaterals of 16 February 2022 as per Exchange Compliance requirements. The Company had submitted responses to the penatty and requested for a waiver of the said
penalty, The Cotpany did not expect any material financial impact on the same based on past precedents. Accordingly ¢his amount was disclosed as a contingent labili

a5 at 31 March 2022,

In April 2023, the Company réceived a final demand from MCX confirming the levy of the above pesalty. Considering the same, the Company bas created a provision
at 31 March 2023 for the entire penalty amount. The Company further proposes 1o file an appeal against the levy, with the respective appellate autherity.

Provision for Litigations

Bafance as on 1 April 2022
Provisiens made during the year
Provisions used during the year
Balance as on 31 March 2023

Current
Non Carrent
11 Other non-financial liabilities
Particulars
Statutory dues
Other Liabilities

12  Share capital

Particulars

a) Authorised
Equity share of ¥ £0 cach with voting sights

b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity share of ¥ 10 each with voting righta

©) Reconciliniion of the shares ontstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity shares with voting rights

At the beginning of the period

Issued and subscribed during the period
Atthe end of ths year

Tin lakhs
Recognised in
Asat . Asatf
1 April 2022 statement of profit ;Is:;: Recogaised in OCI 31 March 2023
{0 ¢ - .
@ 0 b @
{0 0 - ®
5 1 - 6
2 6 = ki
7 7 - 13
6 7 - 13
Recognised in
Asgat L Asat
1 April 2021 statement of profit :l:s: Recopnised in OCI 31 Warch 2022
- 0 - ©
= ®) = {0
S © - o
- 3 m ¥
- 2 N 2
- 8 [¢))] 7
- 7 £} L]
As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
16 .
25 19
36 -
77 19
Litigatiens
36
36
36
Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
107 14
38 -
165 i4
As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Ameount
{in lakhs) (in lakhs)
350 3,500 20 200
150 1,500 20 200
As at 31 March 2033 As at 31 March 2022
No. Jakhs T lakhs No. lakhs T lakhs
20 200 20 200
130 1,300 - .
150 1,500 20 200

%
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14

15

16

17

18

Tin lakhs
d) Shareholders holding mere than 5% shares in the Company and details of Sharehelding of Promoters
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares held % of total No. of shares held %% of tedal
{im lakhs) holding (in Jakhs) holding
Titan Company Limited (Promoter) 150 100 20 100

€) Rights, preferences and restricfions atiached te sharey
The Compeny has only ene class of equity shares. Each holder of equity shares is enftitled to one vote per share. The company has not declare any dividend All equity
shares rank pari passu with regard to dividends and residual aseets of the Company.

In the cvent of liguidation, the shareholders are eligibleto receive the iningassets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their
shareholdings.

) Capital management

The Company's objective for capital management is to maximise share holding value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the Company. The
Company determines the capital reguirement based on aammal operating plans, longterm and other strategic investment plans. As required by the MCX under the
notiffcation released on 24 Feb 2023, the company is required to maintaits a minimum networth of 10% of the average daily cash balance of clienis retained with the
member accross segments/ exchanges in the previous 6 months. Henees, additional share capitat was raised under rights issue

) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares or diginvestment.

Other equity

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Retained earnings

Opening balance 48 (26)

Profit for the period (net of taxes) 197 77

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) {11) 3)

Closing balance 234 48

Nainre and purpose of reserve
Retained eamings are the profit/ess that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general resetve, dividends or other distifbutions paid te shareholders.

Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Fees and Commission Income
- Incotne from broking services 561 241
- [ncome from bank guarantee commission 162 280
723 521
Other income
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Intgrest income on deposits with MCX and other interests 1 3
Interest income on income tax refind 1 -
2 3

Fees and commission expense

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Bank Guarantes Commission 45 81
Corporate Guarantee Commission 119 150
164 231

Employee benefits expenses

Particulars For the year ended  ¥For the year ended
31 March 2023 3% March 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 141 132

Contribution to provideni and oiber funds

~ Provident and other finds {refer note 22) g 6
- Gratuity {refer note 22) 2 2
Staff welfare sxpenses 4 2
155 142
Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Professional charges 37 33
Auditors' remuneration 11 8
Rent 3 3
Membership fees 1 2
Rates and taxes 66 0
Corporate sorial responsibility expenditure (cefer note 19} = N
Software expenses 5
Miscellaneous Expenscs 2 N
125 52
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28

11

22

Statement of Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure

The Compary is not required fo spend for Corporate Social Responsihility for current year as stated in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Earnings per share

A, Basic earnings per share

Tin lakhs

Basic EP§ amonnts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighied average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year (including equity shares that will be isseed upen the conversion of a mandatorify convertible instraments).

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit atfributable to equity belders of the Company by the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average mumber of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the difutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

1. Profit attvibotable to equity sharcholders (basic)

iParticulars For the year ended  For the year ended,
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
[Net profit for the year, aitributable 10 the owners of the Company (A) 137 77
ii) Basic ings per share
Particalars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 20,00,000 26,00,000
Weighted average number of shares issued dusing the year (right issue) 12,582,192 -
[Weighted average numnber of equify shares fssued ontstanding during the year end (B) 32,82,192 26,00,000
Eatnings per share, basie (A)/ (B) 6.0 38
ili) Diluted ¢carnings per share
Particnlars For the year ended  For the year ended|
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Numnber of equity shares at the beginning of the year 20,00,000 20,00,000
Weighted average number of shares issued during the year (right issug) 12,82,192 -
Weighted average number of equity shares issued outstanding during the year end (B) 32,82,192 20,060,000
per share, diluted (A) / (B) 6.0 3.8

Contingent liabilities and commitments

2) The company has given bank puarantee (from axis bank) to MCX for the purpose of facilitating trading to its customers in the commedity market for a value of Rs,

15,000 lakhs a3 on 31 Magch 2023 {Previous year Rs. 28,00( lakhs as on 31 March 2022},
b) There are no claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts as of 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
¢) There arc no outstanding litigations imvolving the Company as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

d) There are no long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material forcseeable losses es on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Capital commitmenty

There are no estimated amount of ibing to be d as of 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Employee benefits

ay Defined Contribution Plans

1) The contributi ized in the of profit and loss during the year are as under:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 3% March 2022

Superannuation fund 3 3

Employee pension fond 1 0

4 3

Note; The above expense are disclosed under Contribution to provident and other funds - Employee benefits expense (refer note 17).
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Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when employees kave rendered services entitling them to such benefits.

The Company provides superannmation benefits to its cmpioyces which are treated as defined coniribution pians.

a) Superannuation fund

Tin lakhs

All eligible employees on Indian payroll are entitied to benefits under Superannuation, a defined contribution plan. The Company recognises such contributions as an

expense when incurred.

The Company expensed 5 lakhs and 3 lakhs for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, respectively, towards Titan Walches SBupgrannuation Fund.

b} Defined Benefit Plans
The exp recognized in the
Particulars

of profit and loss during the year arc as under:

Provident fund*
Long Service Award

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
4 3
1 1
5 4

* Contributions are mads to the Titan Watches Provident Fund Trust at predetermined rates in accordance with the Fund nules. The interest rate payable by the Trust to
the beneficiariesis as notified by the Go The Company has an ebligation to make good the shostfall, if any, between the retarn from the investments of the

Trust and the notified {nferest rate and recognizes such shortfall as an expense.

i) Gratuity (Funded)
The C makes anmual contril

p:

to The Titan Industries Gratuity Fund. The scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested empleyecs at retirement, death

while in employment, or on terminatien of employment as per the Company's Gratuity Scheme. Vesting oceurs upon corpletion of five years of service.

The plan is & defined benefit plan which i sponsored by the Group and hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In particalar, there is a risk for the
Company that en adverse salary growth or inadequate retums on underlying plan assets can result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in

future, Since the benefits are lump sum in nature the plan is not subject to any longevity rigks.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
Particulars

Discount rate (p.a.}
Salary escalation rate (p.a.}

- The retirstuent age of employees of the Company varies frem 58 to 60 years.

- The mortality rates considersd are as per the published rates in the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult table.
- Rates of lsaving service (leaving service due to disabifity included) at spe¢imen ages are as shown below:

Age (Years)

21-44
45 gnd above
Cotnponents of defined benefit costs recognised in the statement of profit and loss are as follows:

Reconciliation of the projected defined benefit obligation
Particulars

Defined benefit liability
Plan asset
Net defined benefit liability/ (asset)

Particalars

Current service cost
Tisterest on net defined benefit lability/ {asset)
Total component of defined benefit costs charged to the statement of profit and loss

Componenis of defined benefit costs gnised in gther comprehensive income are as foltows:
Particulars

Opening amount 1 ised in other comprehensive income outside the staterent of profit and loss
Remezsurements during the year due to:

- Changes in financial assumptions

- Changes in demographic assumptions

- Experience adjusiments

- Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets

- Adjustment to recognise the effect of asset ceiling

Closing amount vecognised in other comprehensive income

* Other comprehensive income disclosed above is gross of tax.

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
7.45% 7.20%
8.00% 7.00%
Rates (pa)
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2423 31 March 2022
6.00% 6.00%
2.00% 2.00%
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
92 T2
76 74
16 ()
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2 2
® [0
2 1
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2422
4 -
3 m
k [
3 5
19

The current service cost, past service cost and the net interess expense for the year ace included in the Employee bencfiis expense! line item in the statement of profit and

loss.

The remeasurement of the net defined liability is included in other comprehensive incoms.

The amount included in the batance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respeet of its defined benefit plans is a5 follows:
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Particulars

Opening net defined benefit Hability/ (assct)

Expense charged to the statement of profit and loss
Amount recognised outside the statereent of profit and loss
Employer contributions

Impact of liability assumed or {settied)

Closing net defined benefit lability/ {asset)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particalars

Opening defined benefit obligation

Current service cost

Pasi service cost

Interest on defined benefit obligation

Remeasurement due to

- Actuarial gaing and losses arising from chenges in demographic assuraptions
- Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumpticns

- Actuarial gains and losses ariging from experience adjustments

Benefits paid

Impact of liability setfled*

Closing defined benefit obligation

*On acceunt of transfer from Titan Company Limited to Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Maovemeuts in the fair valne of plan assets are as follows:
Particulars

Opening fair valug of plan assets

Employer contributions

Interest on plan assels

Remeasurements due to actuarial retum on plan assets legs intercst on plan assets

Benefits paid*

Closing fair value of plan assets

*Qn account of transfer from Titan Company Limited to Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Sensitivity analysis

Tin lakhs
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1) =
2 2
15 4
- 0]
16 {1
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
72 8
2 2
5 5
4 &)
9 1]
. 66
92 72
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
74 -
5 5
3) (O]
- T4
16 74

The key rctuarial assumptions to which the defined benefit plans are perticularly sensitive to are discount rats, full salary escalation rate and attrition rate. The following
table summarises the impact on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of an incrcase or decrease in the assurmption

by 50 basis points:
Asat 31 March 2023
Discount rate Salary escalation rate Attrition rate
Defined benefit obligation on plus 50 basis points 90 85 92
Defined benefit obligation on mings 50 basis poinis 95 a0 93
Asat 31 March 2022
Discount rate Salary escalation rate Atirition rate
Defined benefit obligation on plus 50 basis points 70 75 T2
Defined benefit obligation on minug 50 basis points s 70 73
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
With in year 1 2 2
1 year to 2 ysars 2 2
2 yecars to 3 years 2z 2
3 years to 4 years 3 2
4 years to 5 yeara &0 2
Over 5 years 72 106
The Company is expected to contribute nil to the gratuity fund next year.
A split of plan asset between varions asset classes ig as below:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Quoted Unguoted Quoted Tngueted
Government debt instruments 43 - a7 o
Other debt instruments 23 - 28 -
Entity's own equity instruments 7 - 5 =
Others - 3 - 3
73 3 70 3
¢) Unfunded
The defined benefit obligation pertaining which are provided for but not funded are as under:
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 Marchk 2023 31 March 2022
Compensated absences
Non-current 22 19
Current 3 =
25 12
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13 Related parties
) Relationships

) Promoter and bolding company Titan Company Limited
b) Key management personnel- Directors Ajoy Hiro Chawla (upto 10th October 2022)

Krishnan Venkateshwaran {from 10th October 2022)

Subramaniam Somasundaram

Ashok Sonthalia (from 9tk June 2021)
¢) Fellow subsidiaries Titan Engineering & Automation Limited

Carattang Trading Private Limited

Titan Watches Switzerland AG (Formely Favre Leuba AG)

Titan Watch Company Hongkotg Limited {100% subsidiary of Titan Holdings Infernational FZCG)

Titan Holdings Internaticnal FZCO

Titan Global Retail LL.C

Titan [nicenational QZ LLC
)y Other related partics Green Infia Windpower Theni Limited
<) Promoter of holding company Tata Sons Private Limited

Tamilnadu Industrial Development Corporation Limited
f} Group enlities Tata Communicasions Limited
(Wherever there are transactions)
£) Post employee benefit plan entities Titan Watches Provident Fund

Titan Watches Super Anmuation Fond

Titan Indusiries Gratuity Fund

ii} Related party transactions during the year :
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Titan Company Limited
Issue of equity share eapital 1,300 -
Revenue from operations
Bank guarantee commission 162 280
Income from Broking services 559 297
Expenses
Rental expense 3 2
Corporate gurantee commisson paid 119 150
Shared services 11 12
Other expenses - 3
Guarantees active al the end this financial year
Corporate guarantee 15,000 30,000
Caratlane Trading Private Limited
Revenue from operations
Tncome from Broking services 2 =
Tata Communicationg Limited
Expenses
Banéwidth/ networkings charges i 4]

ii) Related party elosing halances as on halance sheet date:

h ed
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ends

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade Payables
Titan Company Limited* 47,759 47,354
Caratlane Trading Private Limited* 1,385 -
Tata Cormmmications Limited 0 =

*Mark ta market seftlement and margin money placed/refunded during the year in the MCX by the company have not been disclosed as these are placed with MCX on
behalf of the related parties.
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24  Financial instriements

24.1 Categories of financial instruments
Financial assets
For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Measured at fair value threugh OCI (a) - -
Mensured at fair value through PEL {b) S -
Measured at amortised cost

- Cash and cash equivalents 7437 7,422
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 42 804 42,029
-~ Other Finaneial Assets - Current 701 744
- Security depasits with stock exchanges 35 35
- Other Assets 7 -
Total fi ial assets d at ised cost (c) 50,935 50,235
Total financial assets (a+ b +£) 50,985 56,235
Financial liabilities - -
Measured at fair value through OCI (2) - -
Measured at fair value through P&L (b) - -
Mensured at amortised cost 5 =
- Trade payables 48,174 49,992
- Other ficancial Labilities 35 3l
Total financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost () 49,209 50,023
‘Total financial Habilities (a + b +c) 49,209 50,023

Note: There are no derivative instruments as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2621.

24.2  Fair value hierarchy
Fair value is the price that would be received to scll an asset or paid ¢ transfer a Habilityin an orderly trangaction in the prineipal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions {i.c., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

The fair values for assets and liabilities which are measvred at amortised cost as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are same as disclesed in note 25.1 abova.

24.3 Financial risk management
The Company evaluate business risks and challenges. These risks include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

i) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contmctual obligatiens resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk is managed by the
Company through approved credit nomms, establishing credit kimits, obtaini from and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers

to which the Company grants credit terms in the pormal course of business. Ag of 31 March 2023 Company was not exposed to credit risk as there were no trade
receivables at the year end.

i) Liquidity rigk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintainingadequate reserves, banking fagikiticsand reserve bomrowing facilities, by continucnusly monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilitics. The company expects 10 mest its other obligations from operating cash flows and
proceeds of maturing financial assets.

Confractnal maturities of financial Rabilities as at 31 March 2623 Less than 3 months More than 3 months Total
Trade payables 49,174 - 49,174
49,174 - 49,174
Maturity analysis
‘The table below shows an analysis of financial assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or seitled.
Az at 31 March 2023
Particulars Less than 6 months 6-12 months 1-5 years Tere than 5 years Total
Financial Assets
{d) Cash and cash equivalents 7437 - - - 7437
{b) Bank balances other than {a) abave 42,545 259 - - 42,804
{e) Other firancial assets 744 - - 744
50,726 259 - - 50,985
Non-financial Asgets
(a) Cther non-financial assets 39 - - - 39
39 - - - 39
Total Assets 50,765 259 - - 51,024
Financial Liabilitles
(i) Trade Payables 49,174 = - - 49,174
(i) Other Financial Liabilities-Employee 35 - - 35
related -
49,208 - - - 49,208
Non-financiad Liabilities
{a) Provisions 77 - - N 77
(b) Other Non-financial kiabilities 165 - - - 165
242 o - - 242
Total liabilities 49,45 o - - 49,451
>0
Q N
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As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Less than 6 months 6-12 months 1-5 years Maore than 5 years Tatal
Financial Assets
{a) Cash and cash equivalents 7422 - B - 7,422
(b) Bank balances other then (z) above 42,029 = = = 42,029
() Other finangial assets 734 - - - 784
50,238 = B - 50,235
Nou-finauciak Assets
{a) Other zon-financial assets 26 - - - 26
26 - - - 26
Total Assets 50,261 - B - 50,261
Finangial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables 49,992 - : = 49,992
(i) Other Finamrial Lisbilities-Braployee refat 3l a1
50,023 - - - 50,023
Noa-financial Lisbilities
() Cuirent tax liahilities {net) 24 - . B 24
(&) Other Non-finangiak liabilities 14 - - - 14
38 5 & - 38
Total liabilities 50,062 - - - 50,862

iili) Market risk

Market risk arises when movements in market factors (forcign exchange rates, interest rates, crodit spreads and equity prices) impact the Company income or market

valug of ity pmtfnho The Compa.ny in its course of business, is cxposed to change in equity prices, interest rates and forcign oxchange rates. The ohjective of market risk
t is to mai at ptable level of market risk exposure while aiming to maximize return. Further, the Company is holding fixed depasits, which is

provided by clients o maintain margin in MCX, and any interest eamed is passed thremgh to the clients. Therefore the Company was ot exposed to market risk, with

respect to interest rates for the fixed deposit balances outstanding as at the reporting date.

iv) Maturity analysis
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected fo be recovered or settled.

As at 31 March 2023 ‘Within 12 months After 12 months Total
Financial Assets
() Cash and cash equivalents 7437 - 7,437
(b) Bank balances other than (&) above 42,304 - 42,804
(¢} Other financial asssts 744 - 744
50,985 - 50,985
Non-financial Assets
(2) Current tax assets(net) - 142 142
{b) Dcferred Tax Assets (net) - 13 13
(¢) Property, Plant and Equipment - L] 0
{d) Other Intangible assets - 6 6
(¢) Other non-financial assets 39 = 39
39 16l 200
Total Assets 51,024 161 51,185
Financial Liabilities
(a) Trade Payables 49,174 - 49,174
(b) Other Financial Liabilities 35 - 35
49,208 - 49,208
Non-financial Liabilities
(a) Provisions 39 38 7
(b) Osher Non-finaneial liabilities 165 - 165
4 38 z42
Total liabilities 49,413 38 49,451
\Y l"g‘

’)
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As at 31 March 2022 Within 12 momths Adfter 12 months Total
Financial Assets
{&) Cash and cash equivalents 7422 - T7.422
{b) Bank balances other than (a} abave 42,029 - 42,029
{c) Other financial assets 784 - 784
50,235 B 50,235
Non-financial Assets
(a) Current tax assets(nei) “ 28 28
(b} Deferred Tax Assets (net) = & 6
(¢)  Property, Plant and Equipment - 1 1
(dy  Other miangible assets - % 8
(g)  Other non-financial assets 26 - 26
26 43 6%
Total Assels 50,261 43 50,304
Financial Liabilities
{1) Trade Payables
(T} Total cuistanding dues of micro and smaii enterprises - - -
(II) Total outstanding dues of ereditors other 49,992 - 45,992
than micro and small enterprises
(ii) Other Paymbles -
(g} other Financiat liabititics 32 - 32
50,024 - 50,024
Non-financial Liabilities
(&) Current tax liabilities (net) - = -
{b) Provisions - 19 19
{c) Deferred Tax liabilities (Nct) - - -
{b) Other Non-financial Kabilities 14 - 14
14 19 33
‘Total Liabilities 50,038 19 50,057
i¥) Commodity Risk
The Company’s exposute to commadity risk arises primarily on account of margin positions of its clients in exchange traded commodity derivatives. Hence the Company
hag no direct commodity risk,
25  Uilisation of funds
(a) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person{s) or entity(ies), including forcign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that
the Intermediary shall:
(i) directly or indirecily lend or invest in other persons or enfifies identificd in any manner whatsoever by ot on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
(i) provide any guarantee, securify or the like to or on behalf of the Ul{imate Bencficiaries
(b} The Greup has not received any fund from any person(s} or entity(ies), including forcign entitics (Funding Party)} with the understanding (wWhether ded in writing
or otherwise} that the Group shall:
(i) dircetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or sntities identified in any manner whatsoever by er on bebalf of the Fuading Parly {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
26 Segment information

Operating segments are reported in 2 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the ChiefOperating Decision Maker (CODM). The Board of Directors of
the Company assesses the fineoeial performance and position of the Company. The Board of Directors have been identified as the CODM.

The CODM evaluates the performance of the Company as 2 whele for the purpose of resources to be allocated and to assess pecformance. The Company has identified
only one reporigble segment. The entive Company’s business is from 'Brokdng and Guarantes Commission Income from provision of trading services' and there are no
other reportable segments. Thus, the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying value of segment assets, total carrying value of segment liabilities, total cost
incierred to asquire segment asscls, total amount of charge of depreciation during the year ere all a¢ reflected in the flnancial statements for the periods reported.

)R from major op g segl
Revenue generated by the company relates only to one service. Hence, the Company's sole operating segment for the fees and commission from broking services.
Accordingly, there are no additional disclosures to be provided under IND AS 108, other than those already provided in financial statements.

b) Geographic information and Information about mrajor customer
Revenue generated by the company relates only to one customer within India. Hence, the Company's sole gt phical seg is India. A dingly, there are no

additional disclosures to be provided under IND* AS 108, other than those already provided in financial statements,
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27  Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company is engaged in the business of retail and institutional broking. In accordance with Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Costomers, the revenue is
accounted in the following manner for cach head: -

a) Broking Income:

The company is providing trade execution and settlement services %o the customers in retail and institutional segment. There is only one performance obligation of
execution of the trade and settlement of the transaction which is satisfied at a point in time. The brokerage chasged is the transaction price and is recognised as revenue
on trade date bagis, Related receivables are generally recovered in a period of 2 days as per the settlement cycle. Amount not recovered znd which remain overdue for a
period exceeding 90 days, arc provided for.

(1) Revenue is disagpregated by major service lines and timing of revenue recognition as follows:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended)
31 March 2623 31 March 2622/

Timing of Revenue Recognitlon

Services transferred at a point in time - income from broking 561 241

Services transferred over time - income from bank guarantee commissior 162 230

(b) Contract balances

The fellowing tabfe provides information abowt Contract assets and liabilities from contract with customers

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended)
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Trade receivables = =

28 The financialstaternents are presented in " lakhs {ronnded off). Those items which are required to be disclosed and which were not prescnted in the financial statements
due to rounding off to the nearest * lakbs are given below in mpees:

Particuiars Note For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Properly, plant and equipment s 28454 34,082
Deferred tax liability 9 18,000 {25,000)
Rates & Taxes* 18 NA 12,256
Eraployce pension fund 22 59,063 45,000
Bandwidth/ networking charges (in Related party notes) 23 NA 22,125
Trade Payable to Tata Communications Ltd 23 21,750 NA
* The value in the current year is in lakhs which is disclosed in the respective note
%9 The Company is operating under operational leases for its office premises. Total rental exp under the lease amounted to Rs.3 lakhs (Previous year : Rs, 3 lakh).

This arrangement do not gualify as a lease as per the requirements of IND AS 116.

30 (i) The Company dees not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
(i) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(i) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the cusrent or previous year.
{iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the finascial year.
{¥) The Company has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts thet has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
agsessments undez the Tncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, scarch or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961
{vi) The Company has borrowings from banks ard finencial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly retums or gtatements of eurrent agsets
fited by the Company with banks and financial institutions are in apgreement with the hooks of aceounts,
{vii) None of the entities in the Company have been declated wilful defaulter by any bank or firancial institution or government or any government authority.
{wiii) The Company has complicd with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,
{ix) The Company has not entered inte any scheme of armangement which has an sccouating impact on curment or previous financizl year.
{x) The analytical ratiog have not been disclosed ir the financial statements as per Division 10 - IND AS Schedule IH to the Companies Act, 2013, since the Company is
intg broking services, the same is not applicable.

31 Suobsequent events
The company has received a demand hotice for fioh complaince for which a provision of INR 36 lakhs (excluding GST) has been created for the year as disclosed in
Note 10.
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